
INDEX 
 

Candelario Chiropractic, A Professional Corporation & Joserodel Zavala Candelario 

 
Exhibit # Document 
1 USA vs. Joserodel Zavala Candelario (Case No. 18CR-3057BAS) 
2 CA Secretary of State: Statement of Information, 04/05/2012 

 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

9 

7 

8 

9 

Case 3:18-cr-03057-BAS Document 1 Filed 06/27/18 PagelD.1 Page 1of11 

.1s JUN.27 Ptt ·s=.n 
s8~Mt~Nuo~·r~IU~t~~fJ>:J,-. 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF ~~FO~IA 

DtPUT:Y: 

r!l! 
J 

\. ,, 

10 June 2017 Grand Jury 
18 CR· 3 05 7 ·BAS ll UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, Case No. 

12 Plaintiff, 

13 v. 

14 JOSERODEL ZAVALA CANDELARIO, 

15 Defendant. 

16 

17 

18 

19 The Grand Jury charges: 

I N D I C T M E N T ____ "":'!"" ____ _ 

Title 18 ;· U.S.C., Secs. 1341 and 
1346 - Honest Services Mail Fraud; 
Title 18, U.S.C., Sec. 1347 -
Health Care Fraud; Title 18, 
U.S.C., Secs. 1343 and 1346 -
Honest Services Wire Fraud; 
Title 18, U.S.C., Secs. 982(a) (7), 
981 (a) (1) (C), and 982 (b), and 
Title 28, u.s.c.; Sec. 246l(c) -
Criminal Forfeiture 

2 0 INTRODUCTORY ALLEGATIONS 

21 · At all times pertinent .to this Indictment: 

22 THE DEFENDANTS AND OTHER PARTICIPANTS 

23 1. Defendant JOSERODEL ZAVALA CANDELARIO was a chiropractor 

24 licensed by the State of California Board of Chiropractic Examiners. 

25 CANDELARIO was the owner of Candelario Chiropractic, a Professional 

26 Corporation, and R.I.S.E. Medical Center, a Professional Corporation, 

27 dba R.I.S.E. Wellness Center ("RISE Wellness"), which operated multiple 

28 locations in the Southern District of Califo~nia, including at 

VHC:nlv:San Diego:6/27/18 
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1 5030 Bonita Road, Suite B, in Bonita and at 3231 Waring Road, Suite N, 

2 in Oceanside. 

3 2. Boris Dadiomov (charged elsewhere) worked for Carlos Arguello 

4 (charged elsewhere) to facilitate unlawful kickback and referral schemes 

s to compensate physicians and others to refer Workers' Compensation 

6 patients to providers designated by Arguello and Fermin Igiesias 

7 (charged elsewhere). From early 2012 to sometime in 2013, Dadiomov was 

a the referral manager at RISE Wellness for Workers' Compensation 

9 patients. 

10 3. Julian Garcia (charged elsewhere) worked for Arguello to 

11 facilitate unlawful kickback and referral schemes to compensate 

12 physicians and others to refer Workers' Compensation patients to 

13 providers designated by Arguello and Iglesias. Starting sometime in 

14 2013, Garcia took over from. Dadiomov as the referral manager at RISE 

15 Wellness for Workers' Compensation patients. 

16 CALIFORNIA WORKERS' COMPENSATION 

17 4. The · state of California required that employers provide 

18 Workers' Compensation benefits to their employees for qualifying 

19 injuries sustained in the course of their employment. The California 

20 Workers' Compensation System ( "CWCS") was regulated by the California 

21 Labor Code, the California Insurance Code, and the California Code of 

22 Regulations, and was administered by the California Department of 

23 Industrial Relations. 

24 5. The ewes required ·qlaims administrators to authorize and pay 

25 for medical care that was "reasonably required to cure or relieve the 

26 injured worker from the effects of his or her injury," and included 

27 medical, surgical, chiropractic, acupuncture, and hospital treatment. 

28 Claims were submitted and paid by mail and/or wire transfer. 

2 
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1 6. California Labor Codes prohibited physicians (including 

2 chiropractors) paid under the ewes from referring any person for an 

3 enumerated list of services and goods, including physical therapy and 

4 physical rehabilitation, if the physician had a financial interest in 

5 the party receiving the referral. California Labor Code § 139.3(c) (2) 

6 p~ohibited physicians from accepting or receiving consideration as 

7 compensation or ·inducement for a referred evaluation or consultation. 

B This section invalidated any claim that was submitted pursuant to such 

9 referrals, and insurance providers were prohibited from knowingly paying 

10 for any services resulting from such a referral, subject to criminal and 

11 civil penalties. Cal. Labor Code § 139. 3 (d), (f) . Moreover, under 

12 Labor Code § 139.3(e), a physician was required to disclose to the 

13 patient any financial interest in any entity to which the physician 

14 referred the patient for services to be paid for under the ewes. 

15 7. The . California Medical Board prohibited the unlicensed 

16 practice of medicine, and required that any medical practice be owned 

17 at least 51 percent by a medical doctor. Another licensed professional, 

18 such as a chiropractor, could own the remaining 49 percent. According 

19 to the Medical Board, the non-physician owner could not do any of the 

20 following: "hire" the physician or other medical staff, determine what 

21 coding and billing to use, select the medical equipment and supplies, 

22 have authority over clinical decision making, recommend what diagnostic 

23 tests are appropriate, determine the need for referr~ls, or control the 

24 medical records. 

25 8. Physicians, including doctors, surgeons, ~nd chiropractors, 

26 owed a fiduciary duty to thei.r patients. This duty required that 

27 physicians act in their patients' best interests, and not for their own 

28 professional, pecuniary, or personal gain. 

3 

Under California law, a 
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1 physician had a fiduciary duty to disclose all information material to 

2 the patient's decision, when soliciting a patient's consent to a medical 

3 procedure; such information included personal interests unrelated to the 

4 patient's health, whether research or economic, that might affect the 

s physician ' s professional judgment. Accepting kickbacks, bribes, and 

6 referral fees .without the patient's consent was a breach of a physician ' s 

7 fiduciary duty to his patient . 

8 ·Counts 1 - 12 

9 

10 . 9. 

Honest Services Mail Fraud (18 U.S . C. § § 1341 and 1346) 

Paragraphs 1 through 8 of the Introductory .Allegations of this 

11 Indictment are realleged and incorporated by reference. 

12 10. Beginning no later than March 2012, and continuing up through 

13 around November 2015, within the Southern District of California and 

14 elsewhere, defendant JOSERODEL ZAVALA CANDELARIO, knowingly and with the 

15 intent to defraud, executed a material scheme to defraud, that is , to 

16 deprive patients of their intangible right to his honest services and 

17 the honest services of providers who worked at RISE Wellness. 

18 11. Defendant employed the following manners and means to carry 

·19 out the scheme to defraud, among others: 

2o a . It was part of the scheme to defraud that Defendant agreed to 

21 an unlawful cross-referral scheme, in which Defendant would 

22 receive new Workers' Compensation patients for RISE Wellness, 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

and, in exchange, Defendant would refer such patients for 

ancillary procedures and DME to providers as directed by 

Arguello and Iglesias. 

b. It was part of the scheme to defraud that Defendant agreed t o 

meet a quota for the "value" of ancillary services and DME he 

was expected to prescribe for each patient sent to him by 

4 
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1 Arguello and Iglesias through "Providence Scheduling," with 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

the "value" -- such as $30-$50 per MRI referral -- also set 

by Arguello and Iglesias. 

c. It was part of the scheme to defraud that Arguello appointed 

referral managers to work with Defendant and ensure that 

Defendant met the quota and ref erred patients to the 

designated providers, as required. 

d. It was part of the scheme to defraud that Defendant, Arguello, 

and Iglesias disguised the unlawfµl scheme by signing a sham 

"Promotion and Scheduling Services" agreement, pursuant to 

which Defendant would pay Providence Scheduling a monthly rate 

supposedly for marketing and scheduling services, but which 

was in reality a kickback. 

e. It was part of the scheme to defraud that Defendant dictated 

the same treatment plan for all Workers' Compensation 

patients, regardless of their individual medical needs, so he .. 
could fraudulently bill Workers' Compensation insurers. 

f. It was part of the scheme that Defendant prepared a Primary 

Treating Physician's Initial Evaluation and Report for each 

new Workers' Compensation patient, in which Defendant falsely 

verified that he had complied with California Labor Code 139.3 

and had not received or accepted any consideration, whether 

in the form of money or otherwise, as compensation or 

inducement for any referred examination or evaluation. 

g. It was . part of the scheme that Defendant opened a separate 

bank account at City National Bank to pay kickbacks to 

Providence Scheduling for Workers' Compensation patients, and 

5 



Case 3:18-cr-03057-BAS Document 1 Filed 06/27/18 PagelD.6 Page 6 of 11 

1 to receive reimbursements from Workers' Compensation insurers 

2 for services rendered to those patients. 

3 h. It was part of the scheme to defraud that Defendant concealed 

4 from insurers and patients the material fact o f the kickbacks . 

5 i. It was a part of the scheme to defraud that Defendant caused 

6 to be mailed bills, reports, records , and other documents to 

7 ·insurance companies, and caused the insurance companies to 

8 send checks to pay those pills. 

9 j. It was a part of the scheme to defraud that Defendant sent 

10 interstate emai l s and text messages to co- conspirators and 

11 others regarding the scheme . 

12 k. It was part of the scheme that Defendant received 

13 approximately 529 new Workers' Compensation patients as a 

14 result of the scheme, and that he submitted approximately 

15 $6, 605, 364 in bills to insurers for services rendered to those 

16 patients. 

17 EXECUTIONS OF THE SCHEME 

18 12. On or about the following dates, within the Southern District 

19 of California and elsewhere, defendant JOSERODEL ZAVALA CANDELARIO, for 

2 O the purpose of executing the scheme, knowingly caused the fallowing 

21 bills for reimbursement to be placed in ~ post office and authorized 

22 depository for mail matters to be delivered by the United States Postal 

23 Service : 

Count Date Patient Insurer Bill 

25 Amount 

1 8/8/14 Eleuterio P. Pref erred Employers $303.44 
26 Ins. Co. 

27 
2 a/8/14 Luis c . Insurance Co . of the $223.02 

West 

28 

6 
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Count Date :Patient Insurer Bill 
1 Amount 

2 3 8/11/14 Cynthia L. Insurance Co. of the $275.85 
West 

3 4 8/11/14 Reyna M. Insurance Co. of the $215.27 
West 

4 5 8/14/14 Rene R. Insurance Co. of the $275.85 
West 

6 8/20/14 Veronica L. Insurance Co. of the $275.85 
5 

6 West 
7 8/25/14 Irma R. Pref erred Employers $225.64 

7 - Ins. Co. 
8 10/21/14 Marco A. Insurance Co. of the $275.85 

West 8 

9 9 1/20/15 Pablo Z. Insurance Co. of the $275.85 
West 

10 10 2/27/15 Rosalinda A. Pref erred Employers $275.85 
Ins. Co. 

11 11 3/3/15 Luis O. Pref erred Employers $303.44 

12 Ins. Co. 
12 3/23/15 Yolanda T. York Insurance $293.48 

13 

14 All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1341 and 1346. 

15 Counts 13 - 28 

16 Health Care Fraud (18 u.s.c .. § 1347) 

17 . 13. Paragraphs 1 through 8 of the Introductory Allegations of 

18 this Indictment are realleged and incorporated ~y reference. 

19 14. Beginning no later than March 2012 and continuing up through 

20 around November 2015, within the Southern District of California and 

21 elsewhere, defendant JOSERODEL ZAVALA CANDELARIO, knowingly and 

22 willfully ' devised and intended to devise a material scheme and artifice 

23 to defraud a healthcare benefit program, that is, the California Workers' 

24 Compensation System, and to obtain money owned by and in the custody and 

25 control of the California Workers' Compensation system, by means of 

26 materially false and fraudulent P:t:etenses, representations, promises, 

27 and omission and concealment of material facts. 

28 

7 
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1 15. · Paragraph 11 of this Indictment is realleged and incorporated 

2 by reference as more fully describing the scheme to defraud. 

3 EXECUTIONS OF THE SCHEME 

4 16. On or about the following dates, within the Southern District 

5 of California and elsewhere, defendant JOSERODEL ZAVALA CANDELARIO, for 

6 the purpose of executing the scheme, knowingly caused the following 

7 bills for reimbursement to be submitted to the following California 

8 Workers' Compensation insurers: 

9 
Count Date Patient Insurer Bill 

10 Amount 

13 5/22/14 Joseph S. AmTrust North America $222.07 
11 14 7/30/14 Filiberto D. Gallagher Bassett $275.85 

12 15 8/1/14 Gustavo B. SCIF $275.85 
16 8/8/14 Eleuterio P. Pref erred Employers $303.44 

13 Ins. Co. 
17 8/8/14 Luis C. Insurance Co. of the $223.02 

14 West 

15 
18 8/11/14 . Cynthia L. Insurance Co. of the $275.85 

West 
16 19 8/li/14 Kevin G. Sedgwick $275.85 

20 8/14/14 Rene R. Insurance Co. of the $275.85 
17 West 

18 
21 8/20/14 Veronica L. Insurance Co. of the $275.85 

West 

19 22 8/22/14 Dina P. American Zurich $275.85 
23 8/25/14 Irma R. Pref erred Employers $225.64 

20 Ins. Co. 

21 
24 10/21/14 Marco A. Insurance Co. of the $275.85 

West 

22 25 1/20/15 Pablo z. Insurance Co. of the $275.85 
West 

23 26 2/27/15 Rosalinda A. Pref erred Employers $275.85 
Ins. Co. 

24 27 3/3/15 Luis o. Pref erred Employers $303.44 

25 Ins. Co. 
28 3/23/15 Yolanda T. York Insurance $293.48 

26 

27 All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1347. 

28 // 

8 
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1 Counts 29 - 33 

2 Honest Services Wire Fraud (18 u.s.c. § § 1341 and 1346) 

3 17. Paragraphs 1 through 8 of the Introductory Allegations of this 

4 Indictment are realleged and incorporated by reference. 

5 18. Beginning no later than March 2012, and continuing up through 

6 around November 2015, wit~in the Southern Dis_trict of California and 

7 elsewhere, defendant JOSERODEL ZAVALA CANDELARIO, knowingly and with the 

8 intent to defraud, executed a material scheme to defraud, that is, to 

9 deprive patients of their intangible right to his honest services and 

10 the honest services of providers who worked at RISE Wellness. 

11 1-9. Paragraph 11 of this Indictment is realleged and incorporated 

12 by reference as more fully describing the scheme to defraud. 

13 EXECUTIONS OF THE SCHEME 

14 20. On or about the following dates, within the Southern District 

15 of California and elsewhere, defendant JOSERODEL ZAVALA CANDELARIO, for 

16 the purpose of executing the scheme, knowingly transmitted and caused 

17 to be transmitted the following writings, signs, signals, and sounds via 

18 interstate wire transmission: 

19 
Count Date Interstate Wire Transmission 

20 29 4/14/14 Email from CANDELARIO to Julian Garcia, subject 

21 "Re: Fwd: Patients," responding "WOW" to 
information that 89 patients . had been scheduled 

22 through Providence for CANDELARIO's clinics 

23 
30 5/21/14 Email from R.L. to CANDELARIO and Julian Garcia, 

attaching "Clinic Plan" and "Treatment Plan" 
24 31 7/21/14 Email from CANDELARIO to J .0, I subject "Fwd: 

25 
Patient Spreadsheet," instructing "Make sure each 
provider is responsible to make sure every service 

26 is provided and performed to all 250 patients from 

27 
July to Dec 31st, II 

28 

9 
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Count Date 
32 7/29 14 

33 8/5/14 

Interstate Wire Transmission 
Email from JUlian Garcia to ~ermin Iglesias, 
subject "Fwd: List," attaching 'lists of patients 
CANDELARIO had referred for MRis and DME each month 
from April through July 
Email from CANDELARIO to R.L. and Julian Garcia, 
subject "GRID," asking how to "improve the gross 
charges according to the grid I laid out last 
month" 

7 All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343 and 1346. 

8 CRIMINAL ·FORFEITURE 

9 21. Paragraphs 1 through 20 of this Indictment are realleged and 

10 incorporated as if fully set forth herein for the purpose of alleging 

11 forfeiture. 

12 22. U~on conviction of the offenses in Counts 1 to 12 and 29 t9 3~, 

13 defendant JOSERODEL ZAVALA CANDELARIO, pursuant to Title 18, Un-ited 

14 States Code, Section 981 {a) (1) (C), and Title 28, United States Code, 

15 Section 246l(c), shall forfeit to the United States any property, real 

16 and personal, that constitutes or is derived from proceeds traceable to 

17 the offenses. The property· to be forfeited includes, but is not limited 

18 to: all monies, funds and credits up to the amount of $6,605,364 held 

19 in or attributable to City National Bank Account (x2752), in the name 

20 of Candelario Chiropractic, a Professional Corporation, dba R.I.S.E. 

21 Wellness Center, and (b) a money judgment equal to the amount of proceeds 

22 obtained directly or indirectly from the commission of the offenses. 

23 23. Upon conviction of the offenses in Counts 6 to 15, defendant 

24 JOSERODEL ZAVALA CANDELARIO, pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, 

25 Section 982(a) (7), shall forfeit to the United States all property, real 

26 and personal, that constitute.s or is derived, directly or indirectly , 

27 from gross proceeds traceable to the commission of such offenses. The 

28 property to be forfeited includes, but is not limited to: all monies, 

10 
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1 funds and credits up to the amount of $6,605,364 held in or attributable 

2 to City National Bank Account (x2752), in the name of · Candelario 

3 Chiropractic, a Professional Corporation, dba R.I.S.E. Wellness Center, 

4 and (b) a money judgment equal to the amount of proceeds obtained 

s directly or indirectly from the commission of the offenses. 

6 24. If any of the above described forfeitable property, as a result 

7 of any act or omission of defendant: (a) cannot be located upon the 

8 exercise of due diligence; (b) has been transferred or sold to, or 

9 deposited with, a third party; (c) has been placed beyond the 

10 jurisdiction of the Gourt; (d) has been substantially diminished in 

11 value; or (e) has been commingled with other property which cannot be 

12 divided without difficulty; it is the intent of the United States, 

13 pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 982(b) and Title 28, 

14 United States Code, Section 2461 (c), to seek forfeiture of any other 

15 property of defendant up to the value of the forfei table property 

16 described above. 

17 All pursuant to Title 18, United States Code,· Section 982 (a) (7), 

18 Title 18, United States Code, Section 98l(a) (1) (C), and Title 28, United 

19. States Code, Section 246l(c). 

20 DATED: June 27, 2018. 

21 A TRUE BILL: 

Fog 22 

23 

28 

11 



,..... State of California 

·it ... :~:::~.::::. c,.\. 
(Domestic Stock and Agricultural Cooperative Corp.;-Jtions) 

FEES (Filing and Disclosure): $25.00. 
If this is an amendment, see instructions. 

IS 

IMPORTANT - READ INSTRUCTIONS BEFORE COMPLETING THIS FORM 

1. CORPORATE NAME 

CANDELARIO CHIROPRACTIC, A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION 

2. CALIFORNIA CORPORATE NUMBER 

C2877106 

12-665437 

FILED 
In the office of the Secretary of State 

of the State of California 

APR 0 Ii 2012 

This Space for Filing Use Only 

No Change Statement (Not applicable if agent address of record is a P.O. Box address. See instructions.) 
·;-ttthere have been any changes to the.informitiorl-C.OntaiOedlrl thB last statemefi"t-oc"1°"1""n~fo·","'m""a""t"°io"n"1'=;1-.·cd_w_1~·th~th-e~c-a~li7fo_r._n7ia-S~ec-re~ta-ry---1 

· of State, or no statement of information has been previously filed, this form must be completed in its entirety. 
[{] lf there has been no change in any of the information contained in the last Statement of Information filed with the California Secretary 

of State, check the box and proceed to Item ,17. 

Complete Addresses for the Following (Do not abbreviate the name of the city. 

4. STREET ADDRESS OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICE . 

5030 BONITA ROAD SUITE B 
5. STREET ADDRESS OF PRINCIPAL BUSINESS OFFICE IN CALIFORNIA, IF ANY 
5030 BONITA ROAD SUITE B 

6. MAILING ADDRESS OF CORPORATION, IF DIFFERENT THAN ITEM 4 

Items 4 and 5 cannot be P.O. 

CITY 
BONITA 

CITY 
BONITA 

CITY 

Boxes.) 

STATE ZIP CODE 

CA 91902 
STATE ZIP CODE 

CA 91902 
STATE ZIP CODE 

Names and Complete Addresses of the Following O'fficers (The corporation must list these three officers. A comparable title for the specific 
officer may be added; however, the preprinted titles on this form must not be altered.) 

7. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER/ ADDRESS CITY 

JOSE CANDELARIO 5030 BONITA ROAD SUITE B BONITA 
8. SECRETARY 

JOSE CANDELARIO 
9. CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER/ 

JOSE CANDELARIO 

ADDRESS 

5030 BONITA ROAD SUITE B 
ADDRESS ~ 

5030 BONITA ROAD SUITE B 

CITY 
BONITA 

CITY 
BONITA 

STATE ZIP CODE 

CA 91902 
STATE ZIP CODE 

CA 91902 
STATE ZlP CODE 

CA 91902 

Names and Complete Addresses of All Directo:rs, Including Directors Who are Also Officers (The corporation must have at least one 
director. Attach additional pages, if necessary.) 
10. NAME ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP CODE 

JOSE CANDELARIO 5030 BONIT.I\ ROAD SUITE B ____ B_Q_Nl:f/>,__ ___ CA 91902 
11. NAME ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP CODE 

12. NAME ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP CODE 

13. NUMBER OF VACANCIES ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, IF ANY: 

Agent for Service of Process 1f the agent is an individual, the agent must reside in California and Item 15 must be completed with a California street 
address, a P.O. Box address is not acceptable. If ttie agent is another corporation, the agent must have on file with the California Secretary of State a 
certificate pursuant to California Corporations Code sectlOn 1505 and Item 15 must be left blank. 

14. NAME OF AGENT FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS J f~ 
JOSE CANDELARIO 

15. STREET ADDRESS OF AGENT FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS lt.J CALIFORNIA, IF AN INDIVIDUAL CITY 

5030 BONITA ROAD SUITE B BONITA 

Type of Business 
16. DESCRIBE THE TYPE OF BUSINESS OF THE CORPORATION 
HEALTHCARE 

STATE ZIP CODE 

CA 91902 

17. BY SUBMITIING THIS STATEMENT OF INFORMATION~TO THE CALIFORNIA SECRETARY OF ST.A.TE, THE CORP0RAR7JT. C ~TIFIES THE INFORMATION 
CONTAINED HEREIN, INCLUDING ANY ATIACHMENTS, IS TRUE AND CORRECT. "J 

03/27/2012 JOSE CANDELARIO ''" OWNER 
DATE TYPE/PRINT NAME OF PERSON COMPLETING FORM ----Tl-T-LE___ I /-.. l<3NATURE 

S/·200 (REV 01/2012) iiPP~OVED BY SECRETARY OF STATE 


